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BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED

TO THE TIIEMBERS 
NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 44th Annual General Meeting of M/S BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED will be held on Saturday,
24th September 2016 at 11:00 AM at the Registered Office of the Company at Plot No. 5, Sector - 25, Ballabhgarh, Haryana-
121OO4 to transact the following business:

ORDINARYBUSINESS:
1 . To consider and adopt the Statement of Profit & Loss Account for the year ended 3'l st March, 201 6, the Balance Sheet as

at that date and the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.
2. To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Jaya Sharma (DlN-07135989) who retire by rotation at this Annual General Meeting

and being eligible offers herself for re-appointment.
3. To appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration and in this regard to consider and if thought fit , to pass, with or without

modification(s), the following resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTTON:
"RESOLVED THAT M/s Chaturvedi & Company, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.-302137E), be and is
hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company, to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General
Meeting until the conclusion of the forty-fifth Annual General Meeting of the Company on such remuneration as maybe
determined by the Board of Directors in consultation with the said Auditor."

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
4. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s) the following resolution as a SPECIAL RESOLUTION:

'RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company, Sections 1 96, 1 97, 1 98 and
203 read with Schedule V and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appoint-
ment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force) and subject to such other approvals as may be required, consent and approval of the
Company be and is hereby accorded to the reappointment of Sri Suresh Kumar Sharma (000411 50) as Chairman (Execu-
tive) (being Whole-time Director) of the Company, for a further period of 3 (three) years with effect from 1st January
2016 on the terms and conditions of appointment and remuneration as set out in the Explanatory Statement annexed to
the Notice, with authority and power to the Board of Direc{or to alter, vary or modify the terms and conditions of the said
re-appointment and/or remuneration as it may deem fit, subject to the same not exceeding the limits specified under
Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 or any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as mdy
be necessary, proper, expedient or desirable to give effect to this Resolution and/or to make modification as may be
deemed to be in the best in'terest of the Company

5. To cortsider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an SPECIAL RESOLUTION:
"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company, Sections 1 96, 1 97, 1 98 and
203 read with Schedule V and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appoint-
ment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force) and subject to such other approvals as may be required, consent and approval of the
Company be and is hereby accorded to the reappointment of Sri Himanshu Sharma (DlN: 000411 81) as Managing Direc-
tor of the Company, for a further period of 3 (three) years effect from 1st January 2016, on the terms and conditions of
appointment and remuneration as set out in the Explanatory Statement annexed to the Notice, with authority and power to
the Board of Director to alter, vary or modify the terms and conditions of the said re-appointment and/or remuneration as
it may deem fit, subject to the same not exceeding the limits specified under Schedule V to the Companies Act,2013 or
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof.
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may
be necessary proper, expedient or desirable to give effect to this Resolution and/or to make modification as may be
deemed to be in the best interest of the Company,"

Registered ffice:
Plot No-S, Sector-25, Ballabhgarh ,

Haryana-1210(X

Date :30.05.2016,

Place:Kolkata

By the Order of the Board

BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED

RITUDAMANI

COMPANYSECRETARY

ACS: 35435
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Notes:

1.

penson as prory and such penson shall not act a
2. A statement pursuant to Section 1 02(1 ) of the Companies Act, 201 3 relating to the Special Business to be transacted at the

meeting is annexed hereto.
3. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 19th September, 2016 to

24th September 2016 (both days inclusive).
4. The instrument of transfer uisite enclosure, should be sent to the Company well

in advance so as to reach of Members.
5. ln compliance with the pro ompanies (Management

Iternative mode of votino
been made by the Com--
E voting is optional and
I meeting.-

A. In case a Member receives an e-mail from NSDL (for Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company/
Depositories):

i. Open the e-mail and also open PDF file with your Client lD or Folio No. as password. The said PDF file contains your user
lD and password for remote e-voting. Please note that the password is an initial password.

ii. Open the internet browser and type the following URL: https:/Arrrww.evoting.nsdl.com.
iii. Click on Shareholder Login.
iv. lf you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then you can use your existing user lD and password.
v. lf you are logging in for the first time, please enter the user lD and password provided in the PDF file attached with the e-

mail as initial password.
vi. The Password Ghange_ Menu will appear on your screen. Change to a new password of your choice, making sure that it

contains a minimum of 8 digits or characters or a combi ration cif both. Please take utmost care to keep your password
confidential.

vii. Once the remote e-voting home page opens, click on e-voting> Active Voting Cycles.
viii. Select the relevant'EVEN:' (E-Voting Event Number) of BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED on which you chose to vote.

Now you are ready for e-voting as Cast Vote page opens.
ix. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option and click on "Submit" and also "Confirm" when prompted.
x. r" will be displayed.
xi.
xii. format)

horized
a copy

xiii. ln case of.any queries, you !'nay referthe FrequentlyAsked Questions fAas) - Shareholders and e-voting user manual -
. S-hareholders, available at the downloads section of www.evoting.nsdl.com

xiv. You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id in the usel profile detail of the folio which may be used for sending
future communication(s).

xv. y and become member of the Company after dispatch of the notice and
may obtain user/login lD and password by sending a request at

However,. voting then you can use your existing user/login lD andpassword can reset your password by using" Forgot User Details/
Password toll free no. 1800-222-990.

B. In case a AGM (for Members whose email addresses are not registered
with the Company/Depositories):

i. Initial password is provided in the enclosed ballot form: EVEN (E-Voting Event Number), user lD and password.
ii. Please follow all steps from Sl. No. (ii) to Sl. No. (xiii) above, to cast vote
C. Other Instructions:
i. ay, 21st Septem IST)

Members of the ares
may cast their v rem
ote on a resoluti ber.

ii. The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of the Company as on
September 17th,2016.

iii. Mr. Manoj Prasad ShaW Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. FCS 5517), has been appointed as the Scruti-
nizer to scrutlnize the remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.
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iv. Facility for voting through polling paper.shall be made available at the 44th Annual General Meeting and members attending

the meeting who have not already cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their rights at the concerned
meeting.

vi

vi

viii.

6.

7.

8.
9.

10.

11.

Me their vote by remote e-voting prior to the meeting may also attend the meeting but shall not beent again.
Me y holdingshares either in physical form or in dematerialized form , as on 17th September, 2016,ma ing or voting at the AGM through polling paper.

(polling) and through remote e- voting, will not later than
crutinize/s report and submits the same to the Chairman

d scrutinizer's report shall be placed on the website of the
nsdl.co.in . The result shall simultaneously be communi-

n shall be deemed to be passed on the date of meeting i.e
September 24th, 2016.
M-e.mbers are requested to intimate to the Company changd if any, in their registered address along with pin code and post
office.

10 days in
oy.

d to attend

Members t are requested to bring their Depository lD Number and Client lDnumbers e at the Annual General Meeting.
Members e re activated both on CDSL and-NSDL and may be dematerializedunderthe 0

12. shares held by them. The

13. lflfi"sirt"r"o their email
eld in dematerialised form

ister their email id's with the R & T agent. We urge upon you to

14. 
"i3&iJl'P",,ffiitilil"llfi3TilLll|.lli:ffin 

resardins unpaid and
unclaimed amounts lying with companies) Rules, 2012, the Company has NIL amount unpaid and-unclai-med'with the
Company as on 18th September 2015 (date of lastAnnual General Meeting) and the company has declared the same with
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs website.

15. submission of ber (pAN)
lectronic form to submit

fllfl$1|"" rs hordins

16. far are requEsted to register their e-mail address for
ipglars, etc. from the Company electronically.

|TEM NO.4 
oN 102 OF THE COMPAN|ES ACI 2013

Shri Suresh Kumar Sharma, ruho was ?ppo.!!!e_d as a Chairman_(Fxecutivel, (being the Whole Time Director) by the
Members to hold ofiice upto 31st December, 2015 will aftain age of 70 years on Zt it Odober, 2018 and hence continuition

Special Resolution.
shall continue the employment of a
ctor or Manager unless it is approved

operations or_the company or/er a tons p.eriod or.timq ['3:tg;?'rB="3i,"'L]:fy""*|l'Tr:
ment of Shri Suresh Kumar Sharma as Whole Time Di
Pursuant to the recommendation of th
passed a resolution on 'l4th Novem
(Executive), (being the Whole Time
2016. This is subject to the approval
This explanatory statement may also
'l90 of the Companies Act, 2013.
The details of remuneration payable to Shri Suresh Kumar Sharma and the terms and conditions of the re-appointment are
given below:

1) SALARY : Rs. 70,0001 p.m. and subject to periodical increments as may be approved
By Remuneration Commiftee from time to time within the limits prescribed unddr Schedule V of the Companies Act 201 3
or any statutory modification thereof.

2) PERQUISITES: In addition to the aforesaid Salary the following perquisites will be allowed which will be restricted to an
amount so that the total of salary and perks shall not exceed Rs.24,00,000/- per annum.

i) Housing / House RentAllowance :

(a) the Company on hiring unfumished accommodation for the Chairman (Executive) shall be

(b) ItlfirTJtfl;*" company, 10% of the satary of the chairman (Executive) shal be deducted
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(c) In case no accommodation is provided by the Company, the Chairman (Executive) shall be entitled to House RentAllowance
subject to a ceiling of 600/o ot the salary.

(d) The expenditure which may be incuned by the Company on Gas, Electricity, Water, Fumishings, Repairs, and other expenses
for maintaining in full the accommodation occupied by the Chairman (Executive) restricted to 30% of the annual salary.

ii) Medical Reimbursement / Medical Insurance Policy/ P.A Policy :

Expenses incuned for the Chairman (Executive) and his family in accordance with the rules of the Company.
iii) Leave Travel Concession :

For the Chairman (Executive) and his family to and fro to any place once in a year in accordance with the rules speci1ed
by the Company.

iv) Club Fees :

Fees and subscription of maximum two clubs. This will not include admission and life membership fees.
v) Company's contribution towards Provident Fund / SuperAnnuation Fund orAnnuity Fund :

As per rules of the Company but to the extent these either singly or put together to the extent not taxable under the Income
TaxAct.1961

vi) Gratuity :

In accordance with the provisions of the approved fund but shall not exceed half monthls salary for each completed year
of service.

vii) Leave on full pay and allowances as per rules of the Company but not exceeding one month's leave for every completed
year of service subject to the condition that leave accumulated but not availed of will not be allowed to be encashed.

viii)Use of Company's car with driver for business of the Company.
ix) Telephone at residence for business of the Company.
x) Reimbursement of all entertainment and traveling expenses actually incurred by the Chairman (Executive) for the business

of the Company.
The items stated in v, vi, vii, viii, ix and x shall not be considered as perquisites.

3) In the event of loss or inadequacy of profits in any financial year during the aforesaid period the Gompany will pay the
Chairman (Executive) the same remuneration as mentioned herein above.

4) The Board of Directors be and is hereby specifically authorized to alter and vary the terms and conditions of the aforesaid
appointment including remuneration of Sri Suresh Kumar Sharma so as not to exceed the limits specified in Schedule V to
the Companies Act, 2013 including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force or any
amendment and/or modification that may hereafter be made thereto by the Central Government in that behalf from time to
time, or any amendment thereto as may be agreed to between the Board and Sri Suresh Kumar Sharma.

GENEML:
5) Sri Suresh Kumar Sharma agreed to devote his best attention to the business of the Company and to further safeguard the

interest of the Company, including security of its trade secrets and the processes etc. and to make known and available
exclusively to the Company any invention, discovery or design of theirs.

6) The Chairman (Executive) so long he functions as such shall not be paid any sitting fees for attending the meeting of the
Board of Direc{ors or committees thereof.

7) The Chairman (Executive) shall not, so long as he functions as such become interested or otherwise concerned directly
or through his wife/and/or minor children in any selling agency of the Company in future without the prior approval of the
Central Govemment.

8) Subiect to the provision of the Companies Act 2013, the Chairman (Executive) shall in addition to the powers which may
from time to time be assigned to him by the Board of Directors of the Company, have the following powers viz

a) To sign all documents including bonds, guarantees, mortgages, and other legal documents on behalf of the Company,
provided that such bonds guarantees and mortgages relating to the fixed assets have been issued or created by
necessary resolutions of the Board.

b) To take on lease, purchase or othenarise acquire for the Company any property, rights and privileges which the Company
is authorized to acquire at such price and generally on such terms and conditions and as he thinks fit, and also to sell,
exchange or otherwise dispose of absolutely or conditionally any part of the property on such terms and conditions and
for such consideration as he may think fit.

c) To buy or procure the supply of plant, machinery materials, stores, fuel implements and other movable property required
for the purpose of the Company and engage or procure the supply of means of transport and labour requisite for carrying
out the job.

d) To sell or dispose of goods and commodities manufactured, produced or dealt in by the Company and/ or its by products
as the Board may authorize from time to time.

e) To enter into, carry on, rescind or vary all financial arrangements with the Company's business or affairs and pursuant to
or in connec{ion with such arrangement and subject to as aforesaid to deposit, pledge or hypothecate any property of the
Company or documents representing or relating to the same with prior approval of the Board.

f ) To compound and allow time for payment or satisfaction of any debt due to or by the Company and any claim or demands
by or against the Company to arbitration and observe and perform the awards.

g) To appoint, remove or suspend agents, managers, secretary officers, clerks and servants for permanent, temporary or
any special services as he may from time to time think fit, and to determine their powers and duties and to fix their salaries
to such amount as he think fit provided that appointment of the agents will require the sanction of the Board of Directors.
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h) To institute, c,onduct, defend, compound or abandon any legal proceedings by or against the Company or its officers or
otherwise conceming the affairs of the Company and for the purposes engage solicitors, Barristers, Advocates, etc., and
also to compound and allow time for payment or satisfaction of any debts due and in any claims or demand by or against
the Company.

i) To refer any claims or demands by or against the Company to arbilration and conduc{ the same and implement awards, if any,j) To make and give receipts, release and other discharges for money payable to the Company.
k) To enter into all such negotiations and contracts and rescind or vary all such contracts and execute and do all such acts,

deeds and things and in the name and on behalf of the Company as he may consider expedient for or in relation to any of
the matters aforesaid or othemrise for the purpose of the Company.

l) To act on behalf of Company bills, notes, receipts, acceptances, endorsements, cheques, released contracts and docu-
ments.

m) To sign on behalf of Company in all matters relating to bankruptcy and insolvency.
n) From time to time to provide for the management of the affair of the Gompany either in different parts of the Indian Republic

or elsewhere in such manner as he thinks fit, and in particuler to establish branch offices and to appoint any person to be
the attorney or agents of the Company with such powers (including power to sub-delegate) and upon such terms as may
think fit. Provided that the establishment of the branch offices will require the sanction pf the Board.

o) To invest and deal with any of the moneys of the Company not immediately required forthe purpose thereof upon such
securities not being shares in this Company and in such manner as he may think fit, and from time to time vary or realize
such investments.

p) To make and alter rules and regulations conceming the time and manner of repayment of the contribution of the employees
of the Company respectively to provident fund or any such fund and the actual employment, suspensions and forfeit of the
benefits of the said fund and the application and disposal thereof and otheruise in relation to the working and management
of the said fund as he may from time to time think frt.

q) To delegate all, or any powers hereby confered upon him to any person as he may from time to time think fit including the
employees of the Company.

r) Provided nevertheless the above mentioned powers are delegated to the Chairman (Executive) during the period he
continues to be the Chairman (Executive) of the Company and the Board may delete, amend or make additions to these
presents wherever and whenever they consider necessary.

9) The terms and conditions of the said appointment and/or agreement may be altered or varied from time to time mutually by
the Company and the Chairman(being Whole-Time Director) subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 or any
amendment thereof and with the approval of the Shareholders and/or Central Government, whenever required.

10)This agreement shall be subject to approval of the Shareholders of the Company at a general meeting.
Except Shri Suresh Kumar Sharma, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives
are concemed or interested, financially or otheruise in this resolution.

ITEM NO.5
Shri Himanshu Sharma was appointed as a Managing Director of the Company for a period of 5 (five) years from 1 st January
2011 to 31st December,20l5which was approved atthe 39thAnnual General Meeting held on 30th September,2011.
Keeping in view that Sri Himanshu Sharma has rich and varied experience in the Industry and has been involved in the
operations of the Company over a long period of time; it would be in the interest of the Company to continue the employment
of Shri Himanshu Sharma as Managing Director.
Pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Commiftee, the Board of Directors of the Company
passed a resolution on 14th November, 2015 approving re-appointment of Sri Himanshu Sharma, as Managing Director of
the Company for a further period of 3 (three) years w.e.f 1st January, 2016. This is subject to the approval of the
Shareholders at this Annual General Meeting.
This explanatory statement may also be read and treated as disclosure in compliance with the requirements of Section 190
of the Companies Act, 2013.
The details of remuneration payable to Shri Himanshu Sharma and the terms and conditions of the re-appointment are given below:

1 ) SAI-ARY : Rs. 95,0001 p.m. and subject to periodical increments as may be approved
By Remuneration Committee from time to time within the limits prescribed under Schedule V of the Companies Act 2013 or
any statutory modification thereof.

2) PERQUISITES : In addition to the aforesaid Salary the following perquisites will be allowed which will be restricted to an
amount so that the total of salary and perks shall not exceed Rs.24,00,0001 per annum.

i) Housing / House Rent Allowance:
(a) The expenditure incurred by the Company on hiring unfurnished accommodation for the Managing Director shall be subject

to a ceiling of 60% of the salary.
(b) In case the accommodation is owned by the Company, 1 0% of the salary of the Managing Director shall be deducted by the

Company.
(c) In case no accommodation is provided by the Company, the Managing Director shall be entitled to House RentAllowance

subject to a ceiling of 60% of the salary.
(d) The expenditure which may be incuned by the Company on Gas, Electricity, Water, Furnishings, Repairs, and other expenses

for maintaining in full the accommodation occupied by the Managing Director restricted to 30% of the annual salary
ii) Medical Reimbursernent / Medical Insurance Policy/ P.A Policy :

Expenses incuned for the Mg. Director and his family in accordance with the rules of the Company.
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iii) Leave Travel Concession :

For the Managing Direc{or and his family to and fro to any place once in a year in accordance with the rules specified by
the Company.

iv) Club Fees :

Fees and subscription of maximum two clubs. This will not include admission and life membership fees.
v) Company's contribution towards Provident Fund / SuperAnnuation Fund orAnnuity Fund :

As per rules of the Company but to the extent these either singly or put together to the extent not taxable under the Income
TaxAct,1961.

vi) Gratuity :

In accordance with the provisions of the approved fund but shall not exceed half month's salary for each completed year
of service.

vii) Leave on full pay and allowances as per rules of the Company but not exceeding one month's leave for every completed
year of service subject to the condition that leave accumulated but not availed of will not be allowed to be encashed.

viii)Use of Company's car with driver for business of the Company.
ix) Telephone at residence for business of the Company.
x) Reimbursement of all entertainment and traveling expenses actually incurred by the Managing Director for the business of

the Company.
The items stated in v, vi, vii, viii, ix and x shall not be considered as perquisites.

3) In the event of loss or inadequacy of profits in any financial year during the aforesaid period the Company will pay the
Managing Director the same remuneration as mentioned herein above.

4) The Board of Directors be and is hereby specifically authorized to alter and vary the terms and conditions of the aforesaid
appointment including remuneration of Sri Himanshu Sharma so as not to exceed the limits specified in Schedule V to the
Companies Act, 2013 including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force or any
amendment and/or modification that may hereafter be made thereto by the Central Government in that behalf from time to
time, or any amendment thereto as may be agreed to between the Board and Sri Himanshu Sharma.

GENERAL:
5) Sri Himanshu Sharma agreed to devote his best attention to the business of the Company and to further safeguard the

interest of the Company, including security of its trade secrets and the processes etc. and to make known and available
exclusively to the Company any invention, discovery or design of theirs.

6) The Managing Director so long he functions as such shall not be paid any sifting fees for attending the meeting of the Board
of Directors or committees thereof.

7) The Managing Director shall not, so long as he functions as such become interested or otherwise concerned directly or
through his wife/and/or minor children in any selling agency of the Company in future without the prior approval of the
Central Govemment.

8) Subject to the provision of the Companies Act 2013 the Managing Director shall in addition to the powers which may from
time to time be assigned to him by the Board of Directors of the Company, have the following powers viz

a) To sign all documents including bonds, guarantees, mortgages, and other legal documents on behalf of the Company,
provided that such bonds guarantees and mortgages relating to the fixed assets have been issued or created by
necessary resolutions of the Board.

b) To take on lease, purchase or otherwise acquire for the Company any property, rights and privileges which the Company
is authorized to acquire at such price and generally on such terms and conditions and as he thinks fit, and also to seli,
exchange or othenrise dispose of absolutely or conditionally any part of the property on such terms and conditions and
for such consideration as he may think fit.

c) To buy or procure the supply of plant, machinery materials, stores, fuel implements and other movable property required
for the purpose of the Company and engage or procure the supply of means of transport and labour requisite for cairying
out the job.

d) To sell or dispose of goods and commodities manufactured, produced or dealt in by the Company and/ or its by products
as the Board may authorize from time to time.

e) To enter into, carry on, rescind or vary all financial arrangements with the Company's business or affairs and pursuant to
or in connection with such arrangement and subject to as aforesaid to deposit, pledge or hypothecate any property of the
Company or documents representing or relating to the same with prior approval of the Board.

f ) To compound and allow time for payment or satisfaction of any debt due to or by the Company and any claim or demands
by or against the Company to arbitration and observe and perform the awards.

g) To appoint, remove or suspend agents, managers, secretary officers, clerks and servants for permanent, temporary or
any special services as he may from time to time think fit, and to determine their powers and duties and to fix their salaries
to such amount as he think fit provided that appointment of the agents will require the sanction of the Board of Directors.

h) To institute, conduct, defend, compound or abandon any legal proceedings by or against the Company or its officers or
othenadse concerning the affairs ofthe Company and forthe purposes engage solicitors, Barristers, Advocates, etc., and
also to compound and allow time for payment or satisfaction of any debts due and in any claims or demand by or against
the Company.

i) To refer any claims or demands by or against the Company to arbitration and conduct the same and implement awards, if
any.

j) To make arid give receipts, release and other discharges for money payable to the Company.

10
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k)Toenterintoa||suchnegotiationsandcontractsandrescindorvarya||sUc

deeds and things and in the name and on behalf of the Company as he may consider expedient for or in relation to any oi
the matters aforesaid or othenrvise for the purpose of the Company.

l) To act on behalf of Company bills, notes, receipts, acc€ptances, endorsements, cheques, released contracts and docu-
ments.

m) lo qign on behalf of Company in all matters relating to bankruptcy and insolvency.
n) FromtimetotimetoprovideforthemanagementoftheaffairoftheCompanyeithLrindifferentpartsofthelndianRepublic

or elsewhere in such manner as he thinks fit, and in particular to establish branch offices and to appoint any person to be
tlg.aqoqey or agents of the Company with such powers (including power to sub-delegate) and upon such-terms as may
think ftt. Provided that the establishment of the branch offices will require the sanction of the Board.

o) To invest and deal with any. of the moneys of the Company not immediately required for the purpose thereof upon such
securities not b€ing shares in this Company and in such manner as he may think fit, and from time to time vary or realize
such investments.

p) To make and alter rules and regulations concerning the time and manner of repayment of the contribution of the employees
of the Company respectively to provident fund or any such fund and the actual employment, suspensions and forfejt oi the
benefits of the said fund and the application and disposal thereof and otherwise in relation to the working and management
of the said fund as he may from time to time think fit.

q) To delegate all, or any powers hereby conferred upon him to any person as he may from time to time think fit including the
employees of the Company.

r) Provided nevertheless the above mentioned powers are delegated to the Managing Director during the period he continues
to be the Managing Director of the Company and the Board may delete, amend or make additions to these presents
wherever bnd whenever they consider necessary.

9) The terms and conditions of the said appointment and/or agreement may be altered or varied from time to time mutually by
the Company and the Managing Director subject to the provisions of the Companies Acl, 2O13 or any amendment theieol
and with the approval of the Shareholders and/or Central Government, whenever reeuired.

1O)This agreement shall be subjec{ to approval of the Shareholders of the Company at a general meeting."
Except Shri Himanshu Sharma, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnelof the Company and their relatives are
concemed or interested, financially or otherwise in this resolution.

Registered Office:

Plot No-S, Sector-25, Ballabhgarh ,

Haryana-l21004

Date :30.05.2016. Place :Kolkata

By the Order of the Board

BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED

RITUDAMANI

COMPANYSECRETARY

ACS: 35435
ADDITIONAL INFORiIATION ON DIRECTORS RECOilIMENDED FORAPPOINTMENT / RE-APPOINTMENTAS REQUIRED
UNDER REGULATION 36(3) OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATTON AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT) REGULATIONS, 2015 :

Note: Disclosure of relationship between Directors inter-se as required under Sub-regulation 3 of Regulation 36 of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015, Sri Suresh KumarSharma, Whole-time Director is

father of Sri Himanshu Sharma, Managing Director and father in law of Smt Jaya Sharma ,Women Director.

Name of the Director Sri Suresh Kumar Sharma Sri Himanshu Shatma Smt Jaya Shama

Date of Birth 2lsr 0ctober, 1 948 28th 0ctober.1 971 2lst March,l 974

Date of First Appointment rurnJury, rv/z 26th August,l 996 Slst Malch,20l5

Qualifications B.C(lM fi()NSI B Engg BC(]M {H()NS)

Professional Membership Ntt tlt t Nt
Nature of his expertise in specific

functional areas

llilore than 40 years of experience in

the gases industry

More than 20 years of

experience in the

manuf acturing industry

I years 0r expenence In the

gases industry

Names of the listed entities in which he

also holds Directorship of Boards

NT NI NT

Name of the listed entities in which he also
holds Membership of Committees of
Boards

NL NL NL

No of Shares held in the Company 85445 62800 63500
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Particulars
Total revenue
PBDIT
Finance cost

FBT

Tax expense
PAT

201 5-1 6
1 070.33

115.93

DIRECTORS'REPORT
Dear Shareholders,
The Directors have pleasure in presenting the 44th Annual
Report and the Audited Accounts of the Company for the fi-
nancial year ended March 31 , 201 6
1. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL RESULTS: (Rs./Lacs)

good infrastructure etc. Your Company has taken adequate
steps to reduce the cost of production by continuously evalu-
ating process improvements and best operational practices.
Although the industrial gas industry is categorized as lGreen
Industry", your Company is committed to adhere to all appli-
cable environment regulations and improve upon the environ-
mental performance on a continued basis.
Human Resources Development: The Company appreciates that
human assets constitute the driving force behind the Company's
growth plans. The Company has, during the previous year, con-
tinued to have good industrial relations with its employees. your
Company would like to record the whole-hearted support and
dedication received from the employees at all levels.
6. LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGES:
The Company confirms that it has paid the annual Listing Fees
for the year 2015-20'16 to BSE where the Company's shares
are listed.
7. DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES:
38.88% of the Company's paid up Equity Shares Capital is in
dematerialization from as on 31st March. 2016 and balance
61.'12% is in physicalform. The Company's Registra/s and Share
TransferAgents are M/s Skyline Financial Services Pvt Ltd hav-
ing their office at D-153A, 1st Floor, Okhla IndustrialArea Phase-
I, New Delhi-110020.
8. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD:
During the Financial Year 201 5-16, 4 (four) meetings of the Board
of Directors of the Company were held on 30th May 2015, 14th
August 2015, 14th November 2015, and 6th February 2016.
9. DIRECTORSAND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
Pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination and Remu-
neration Committee and subject to the approval of Sharehold-
ers, Sri Suresh Kumar Sharma (DlN: 00O411 50) was re-appoint-
ment as Chairman (Executive) (being the Whole Time Director)
of the Company for a further period of 3 (three) years w.e.f 1st
January,2016.
Pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination and Remu-
neration Committee and subject to the approval of Sharehold-
ers, Sri Himanshu Sharma (DlN: 00M ll 81 ) was re-appointment
as Managing Director of the Company for a further period of 3
(three) years we.f 'lst January 2016.
In accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Articles of
Association of the Company, Mrs. Jaya Sharma (DlN-071 35989),
director of the Company, retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting and being eligible have offered herself for re-
appointment.
The Independent Directors of the Company have given the cer-
tificate of independence to the Company stating that they meet
the criteria of Independence as mentioned under Section 149(6)
of the Companies Act, 2013.
10. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILIry STATEMENT
In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Com-
panies Act 2013, your directors confirm that:
in the preparation of the annual accpunts for the financial year
ended 31 March 2016, the applicable accounting standards had
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material

2014-'t5
't24't.27

156.47
2.82 2.39

Depreciation & amortization 23.40 22.90
89.71 131.18
22.43 29.13
67.29 102.05

Surplus- opening balance E62.04 760.31
Surplus- closing balance 929.33 862.04
2. OPERATION:
During the year under review the sales and other income of
the Company amounted to Rs 1070.33 lacs compared to Rs.
1241.27 lacs in the previous year. Afier providing for financial
charges, depreciation, current and defened taxation and other
adjustments, the Company reported profit after tax and ex-
traordinary item of Rs. 67.29 Lacs
3. DIVIDEND
The Board considered it to be prudent to conserve the re-
sources forthe Company's groMh and expansion and accord-
ingly does not recommend payment of any dividend on the
Equity shares for the financial year under review
4. STATEMENT IN RESPECT OFADEOUACY OF INTER-
NAL FINANCIAL CONTROL WITH REFERENCE TO THE FI-
NANCIAL STATEMENTS:
The Company has in place adequate internal financial con-
trols with reference to financial statements. During the year,
such controls were tested and no reportable material weak-
ness in the.design or operation were observed.
5. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS:
Industry Struc'ture and Development: Your Industry is prima-
rily a "Gas Manufacturing Industry" supplying orygen gas from
Ghatsila plant on exclusive supply scheme basis. The Com-
pany is also making wind power and supplying to TNEB, Tamil
Nadu.
Outlook Opportunities, Threats & Concerns, Environment
health and Safety: The encouraging growth on both produc-
tion and sales in last years is likely to be sustained in current
year also. Outlook for the current year remains strong. The
Company's operations are subject to risks which can impac{
business performance essentially with regard to prices of ba-
sic materials like molecular sieves, power. The management
is seized of assessing such risks and takes measures to ad-
dress the same.
The fundamental ofthe gas industry appears to be better and
is growing fast because of the improvement in the steel sec-
tor. As our sales are tied up some strategies adopted by your
Company are : (a)reducing cost of capital (b) transactional
cost of production (c) reducing pollution levels (d) creation of
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departures, if any;
the Direclors had selected such accounting policies and
applied them consistently and made judgments and esti-
mates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31

March, 2016 and of the profit of the Company for period from
1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016;
the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance ofadequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities;
the Directors had prepared the annual accounts for the finan-
cial year ended 31 March 2016 on a going concern basis;
the Director had laid down internal financial controls to be
followed by the Company and that such internal financial
Control are adequate and were operating effectively;
the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compli-
ance with the provisions of all dpplicable laws and that such
systems were adequate and operating effectively.
1 1. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY:
Pursuant to Section 178(3) and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 of the Act the Company has put
in place a Nomination and Remuneration Policy framed by
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board
for determining the qualifications, positive attributes and in-
dependence of the Direclors, besides recommending a policy
on remuneration of the Directors and Key managerial per-
sonnel.
12. AUDIT COMMITTEE:
The Audit Committee of the Board is comprised of Mr.
Himanshu Sharma, Mr. Bipin Bihari Lal and Mr. Jagdish
Chandra Kaushik, with Mr Himanshu Sharma as a executive
Director/Managing Director and Mr. Bipin Bihari Lal and Mr.
Jagdish Chandra Kaushik as Independent Direclors. All the
recommendations made by the Audit Committee were ac-
cepted by the Board.
During the Financial Year 2015-16, 4 (four) meetings of the
Audit Committee of the Board of Directors were held on 30th
May 201 5, 'l4th August 2015, 14th November 201 5 and 6th
February 2016.
1 3. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board
are comprised of Mrs. Jaya Sharma, Mr. Bipin Bihari Lal and
Mr. Jagdish Chandra Kaushik. Mrs Jaya Sharma as a non-
executive Director and Mr. Bipin Bihari Lal and Mr. Jagdish
Chandra Kaushik as Independent Directors.
During the Financial Year 201 5-16, 2 (Two) meetings of the
Nomination and Remuneration Commiftee of the Board of
Directors were held on 30th May 2015 and 14th November
2015.
14. AUDITORS AND AUDITORS REPORT:
M/s. Chaturvedi & Company, Chartered Accountants (Firm
Registration No. 302137E), Auditors of the Company hold
office until the conclusion bf the forthcoming Annual General

Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.
The Company has received a letter from the Statutory Auditors
to the effect that their reappointment, if made at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting, would be as per the term provided
under the Act and within the limits laid down by or under the
authority of the Act. The notes on the financial statements re-
ferred to in the Auditor's Report are Self explanatory and re-
quires no explanation.
1 5. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR:
The Board has appointed Mr Manoj Prasad ShaW Practising
Company Secretary (FCS 4194), to conduct Secretarial Audit
for the financial year 2015-16. The Secretarial Audit Report for
the financial year ended March 31 , 2016 is annexed herewith
marked as Annexure A to this Report. The Secretarial Audit
Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse
remark.
16. MATERIAL CHANGES OCCURRED AFTER END OF FI-
NANCIALYEAR:
No material changes and commitment which could affect the
Company's financial position have occurred between the end of
the financial year of the Company and date of this report.
17. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY TECHNOLOGYABSORP-
TION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:
The information required under section 134 of the Companies
Act, 2013, are provided in 'Annexure B'to this Report.
18. VIGIL MECHANISM:
fn pursuantto Section 177(9) of theAct,2013 and Rules made
there under, the company has in place a policy on vigil mecha-
nism for enabling the Directors and employees of the Company
to report their genuine concerns, if any and also provides for
adequate safeguards against victimization of persons using the
mechanism.
19. CORPORATE SOCTAL RESPONS|BtL|TY (CSR):
The Company has not d6veloped and implemented any Corpo-
rate Social Responsibility initiatives as the said provisions are
not applicable.
20. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:
With reference to the provisions of Section 134(3)(n) of the Com-
panies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors has develooed a risk
management plan of the Company and had identified the key
risk areas where the Company's business is vulnerable. The
key risk areas are further categorized in the following:-
(a) Strategic Risks,
(b) Operational Risks and
(c) Financial and Compliance related Risks.
All the strategic, operational and financial risks are duly ana-
lyzed and taken care of.
The Directors are aware of the requirement of the risk mitiga-
tion plan and are continuously making the necessary efforts to
redress the impact of the adversities.
21. STATEMENT ON FORMALANNUAL EVALUATION MADE
BY THE BOARD OF ITS OWN PERFORMANCE, ITS DIREC-
TORS, AND THAT OF ITS COMMITTEES:
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the
Act"), the Board carried out the perforinance evaluation of its

13
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own and that of its Individual Directors through the Nomina-
tion and Remuneration Corrynittee of the Board (the Commit-
tee"), duly constituted by the Board for the above purpose,
amongst others, in terms of the Act.
During the year under revieq the Committee made the per-
formance evaluation as above, based on the following criteri-
ons, in line with the Nomination and Remuneration Policy:
- Attendance and participation in the meetings;
- Preparedness for the meetings;
- Understanding of the Company and the extemal environ-
ment in which it operates and
- constructive contribution to issues and active participation
at meetings
The Commiftee found the Directors to be fulfilling the above
criterions.
The Board also conducted the performance evaluation of its
various Committees, based on references made to the Com-
mittees, in terms of the Act and found the performance to be
satisfactory.
22. CONTRACT AND ARRANGEMENT WITH RELATED
PARTIES:
TheAudit Committee reviews all the Related Transactions, to
ensure that the same are in line with the provisions of Law
and Policy. The Committee approves the Related Party Trans-
actions, none of the transactions approved in the flnancial
year breached Arm's Length and ordinary course criteria.
All contracts / anangements / transactions entered by the
Company during the financial year with related parties were
in the ordinary course of business and on an arm's length
basis. During the year, the Company had not entered into any
contract / arrangement / transaction with related parties which
could be considered material in accordance with the policy of
the Company on materiality of related party transactions.
Your Direc{ors draw attention of the members to Note 26.18
to the financial statement which sets out related party disclo-
sures.
23. EXTRACT OFANNUAL RETURN:
The extract of Annual Return, in format MGT-9. is attached as
'Annexure C'
24. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUAMNTEES OR INVEST-
MENTS:
Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered un-
der the provisions of Section 1 86 of the Companies Act, 201 3
are given in the notes to the Financial Statements
25. SHARE CAPITAL:
During the year under review, there was no change in Share
Capital of the Company.
26. PARTICUI.ARS OF EMPLOYEES:
The disclosure as required under Rule 5(1) of Companies
(Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014 is enclosed with this report as Annexure D. Your
company has not paid any remuneration attracting the provi-
sions of Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment & Remu-
neration of ManCgerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. Hence, no
inforrnation is required to be appended to this report in this

regard.
27 CORPORATE WEBSITE:
The Company maintains a website www.globalbol.com where
detailed information of the Company and its product are pro-
vided.
28. DTSCLOSURES UNDER RULE 8(5) OF COMPANtES (AC-
couNTS) RULES, 2014:
Financial summary or highlights: As detailed under the heading
'Summary of Financial Results'
Change in the nature of business, if any: None
Details of Directors or Key Managerial Personnel, who were ap-
pointed or resigned during the year:
Directors Re-appointed: Sri Suresh Kumar Sharma (DlN:
0004'1150) was re-appointment as Chairman (Executive) (being
the Whole Time Director) of the Company for a further period of
3 (three) years w.e.f 1st January, 2016
Directors resigned : None
KMPs Re-appointed: Sri Himanshu Sharma (DlN: 00041181)
was re-appointment as Managing Director of the Company for a
further period of 3 (three) years we.f lst January, 2016
Names of Companies which have become or ceased to be Sub-
sidiaries, Joint Venture Companies or Associate Companies
during the year- NIL
Details relating to deposits: There were no fixed deposits from
the public outstanding of the Company at the end of the financial
year.

No fixed deposit has been accepted during the year and as such,
there is no default in repayment of the said deposits.
There has not been any deposit, which is not in compliance With
the requirements of Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013.
No significant and material orders have been passed by any
regulator(s) or Court(s) or Tribunal(s) impacting the going
concern's status and Companies operations in future.
Adequacy of Internal Financial Control: Your Company has an
adequate system of internal control procedure as commensu-
rate with the size and nature of business, which ensures that all
assets are safeguarded and protected against loss and all trans-
actions are recorded and reported correctly.
The internal control system of the Company is monitored and
evaluated by internal auditors and their audit reports are periodi-
cally reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors.
The observations and comments of the Audit Committee are
placed before the Board for reference.
The scope of internal audit includes audit of Purchase Facilities,
Sales Promotion Expenditure and Incentive Scheme, Debtors
and Creditors policy, Inventory policy, VAT and Cenvat matters
and others, which are also considered by the Statutory Auditors
while conducting audit of the annual financial statements.
29. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HAMSSMENT OF
WOMEN AT WORKPI.ACE (PREVENTION, PROHI BITION AND
REDRESSAL) ACT,2013:
Your Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy
in lind with the requirements of The Sexual Harassment of Women
at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 201 3.
Your Direclors haVe to report that, during the year under review,
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neither any complaints of sexual harassment were re-
ceived by it, nor were there any complaints relating thereto
which required any disposal thereof.
30. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:
This report Contains forward looking statements that involve
risks and uncertainties. Actual results, performing or achieve-
ment could difer materially from those expressed or implied
in such forward looking statements. Significant factors that
could make a difference to the Company's operation include
domestics and intemational economic conditions afiecting
demand-supply and price conditions, foreign exchange fluc-
tuations changes in government regulations, tax regimes and
other statues.
31. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
The Board would like to express its sincere appreciation for
the valuable support and co-operation received from various
Central and State GovernmentAuthorities, Stock Exchanges,
Financial Institutions and Banks during the year. They also
gratefully acknowledge the support extended by the custom-
ers and shareholders and contribution made by the employ-
ees at all level.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
S K SHARMA
Place : Kolkata
Chairman
Date : 30th May 2016
(DlN:00041150)

ANNEXURE-A
Form No, MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st March 2016

[Pursuant to section 204(1 ) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
Personnel), Rules, 20141
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FORTHE FINANCIALYEAR ENDED 3'lst March 2016
To,

The Members,
M/s BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED
SECTOR 25, PLOT NO, 5

BALI.ABHGARH,
HARYANA-I21004.
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of
applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate praclices by M/s BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITEO,
(hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was con-
ducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing our opinion thereon.
Based on our verification of the M/s BHAGAWATI OXYGEN
LIMITED's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the company and also
the information prcvided by the Company, its officers, agents
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secre-

tarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company
has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on
March 31st, 2016 complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-pro-
cesses and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.
We have examined the books, papersi, minute books, forms and
retums filed and other records maintained by M/s BHAGAWATI
OXYGEN LIMITED for the financial year ended on March 31st,
2016 according to the provisions of:

0 The CompaniesAct, 2013 (theAct) and the rules made there-
under;
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA')
and the rules made thereunder;
(iii) The Depositories Act, '1996 and the Regulations and Bye-
laws framed thereunder;
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1 999 and the rules and
regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct In-
vestment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commer-
cial Borrowings;
(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed un-
der the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (.SEBI
Act'):-
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 201'l;
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of
Insider Trading) Regulations, 1 992;
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capi-
tal and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009; (Not ap-
plicable to the Company during the Audit Period)
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee
Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme)
Guidelines, 1999; (Not applicable to the Company during
the Audit Period)
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue and List-
ing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; (Not applicable to
the Company during the Audit Period)
(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to
an lssue and Share TransferAgents) Regulations, 1993 regard-
ing the Companies Act and dealing with client;
(S) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of
Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable to the Com-
pany during the Audit Period)and
(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Buyback of
Securities) Regulations, 1998; (Not applicable to the Com-
pany during the Audit Period)
(vi) We have relied on the representation made by the Com-
pany and its Officers for systems and mechanism formed by the
Company for compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws and
Regulations to the Company. The list of major head/groups of
Acts, Laws and Regulations as applicable to the Company are
as follows :-
Gas Cylinders Rule,2004
Static and Mobile Pressure Vessels(unfired) Rules,'1981
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses
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of the following:
(i) The company has complied with the applicable Clauses
of Secretarial Standard (SS-1 and SS-2) issued by the Insti-
tute of Company Secretaries of India and it was noted that the
company has complied with the same to the extent possible.
(ii) The company has complied with the Listing Agreements
to the extent applicable and also complied with SEBI (Listing
Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015
entered into by the Company with the stock exchanges Dur-
ing the period under review the Company has complied with
the provisions of theAcl, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Stan-
dards, etc. mentioned above.
We further report that
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted
with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Direclors and Independent Directors. The changes in the com-
position of the Board of Directors that took place during the
period under review are carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda are sent at
least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking
and obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful partici-
pation at the meeting.
Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting mem-
bers' views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.
We further report that there are adequate systems and
processes in the company collmensurate with the size and
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines
We further report that during the audit period the company
has accorded the consent of members to the Board of Direc-
tors for the following specific events/action having a major
bearing on,the company's affairs.
' Alteration of clause'100 ofArticle of Association u/s 14 of
the Companies Act, 2013 by substitution of new clause that
the company in General Meeting or the directors may at any
time appoint one or more directors as Managing Director or
Whole Time director on such remuneration ,terms and Condi-
tion as may be decided by them on such meeting. All direc-
tors including Whole time and Managing Director shall be li-
able to retire by rotation subject to provision of the Compa-
nies Act, 2013 .

Place : Kolkata
Name of Firm : M/s. Manoj Shaw & Co.
Date: 30/05/2016
Proprietor: Manoj Prasad Shaw
FCS No. 5517
CP No. 41 94
The report is to be read with our letter of even date which is
annexed as @! and forms an integral part of this
report

"Annexure A"

TO
THE MEMBERS
BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED
SECTOR 25, PLOT NO. 5
BALLABHGARH,
HARYANA-121004.

Our Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.
'1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express
dn opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.
2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were
appropriate to obtain reasonbble assurance about the correct-
ness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification
was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected
in Secretarial records. We believe that the process and prac-
tices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of
financial records and Books ofAccounts of the Company.
4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management
representation about the Compliance of laws, rules and regula-
tions and happening of events etc.
5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other ap-
plicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility
of marlagement. Our examination was limited to the verification
of proccdure on test basis.
6. The SecretarialAudit Report is neither an assurance a9 to the
future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effective-
ness with which the management has conducted the affairs of
the Company.

Place : Kolkata
Name of Firm : M/s. Manol Shaw & Co.
Date : 3010512016
Proprietor: Manoj Prasad Shaw
FCS No. 5517
CP No. 4194

ANNEXURE-B
Information on Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorbtion,
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo required to be disclosed
under section '134 of the Companies Act, 20'13 read with Com-
panies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are provided hereunder:
(A) Conservation of Energy
(a) Energy conservation steps taken:
+Energy conservation continues to receive priority attention at
all levels.
+Factories have implemented measures to maintain power fac-
tor above 0.98 to reduce reactive power loss.
+Gradual replacement of high energy illumination by lower power

consuming illumination in working area.
+Replacement of opaque sheets with translucent corrugated
sheets to allow more natural light.
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+Continuous effort to reuse/recycle ground water +lmproved manufacturing efficiency with reduced losses &
(b) Additional investment proposals, if any, being 6es1s.
implemented for reduction of consumption of energy: +lmprovedqualityandproductionmeetingcustomerrequirement.
(c) lmpact of measures of (a) & (b) for reduction of 3. Future plan of Action :

energy consumption and conseguent impact on cost +lncreased focus on customized product deliverables aligning
of production of goods: in line with strategic business partners.
+Reduction in specific power usage per unit of output to be +l6p1eyed process operation with reduced process wastage,
realized in coming years. debottlenecking of processes, equipment and quality issues.
(O Enery oonsenation in Espect d specified indusfies : lr|iA 4. Expenditure on R&D : charged under primary heads of
(B) Technology Absorbtioh 3ccounrs.
Research E Development (R&D) (C) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo: (Rs./Lacs)
1. Efforts and areas in which R&D carried out :

+The Company is successfully doing improvement of product
characteristics.
+Developing processes to improve product cost structure.
2. Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts :

ANNEXURE-C

Form No. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended on 31st March 2015

[Pursuant to section 92(3] of the Companies Act 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Bules, 2014)

I REGISTMTIONAND OTHER DETAILS:

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

20'15-16 2014-15
Foreign exchange outgo 5.96 141 .30
Foreign exchange earning

i) GIN: 174899HR'l 972PtC006203

iil Registration Date: 10th Julv, 1972

iii) Name of the Company: BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED

iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company: Listed Puhlic Comoanv limited hv Share Canital

v) Address of the Regislered office and contact details : Sector 25. Plot N0.5. Ballaboarh. Harvana l2'1004
vil Whether listed company: Yes

viil Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and Transler Agent, if any: Skyline Financial Services {Pl Ltd

D-'l 53A, lst Floor, 0khla Industrial Area, Phase.l

New Delhi- 110 020

Ph : +9'l-l'l-64732681 to 88 Fax:011.26812683

Email : admin@skylinerta.com

Sl. No. Name and Description of main products I services NIC Code of the Products i service % to total tulnover of the company

INDUSTRIAL GASES. OXYGEN 2804 88.9296

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARYANDASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sl. No. Name and address ofthe Company CIN IGTN Holding / Subsidiary / Associate % oJ Shares Held Applicable Section

Nt NT Nt NL Nt-
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IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAKUPAS PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL EQU|TN

CATEGORY-WISE SHARE HOLDING
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(ii) Shareholding of Promoterc.

Shaieholde/s Name Sharetolding at the beqinninq of the vear Shareholding at the end otthe year

No. of Shares
96 of total

Shares
No. of Shares

9{ of total

Shares

Darwafl iltFl t5 il uru.urupatr' u (5 I rnE.(irpanl U U
2 ?lan Prasad Fwba t5 UUU 0 tc UUU 0 U
J shyam Mohan (a UUU U t5 U.UU u U
4 DnaGil unat0wal 1CU 0.01 U 15U u.01 U U
b Ashok fiumar GaIg 1U//C uu5 0 'r u/5 UU5 t U

B K Halna Kdil Karup 't 5u U.U5 U 150 u.uc u o
Manssn M|ttal 150 0.05 U 15U U.UC U U

u sangrta Bchal 1 5UU U.UO 0 1 CUU U.UO 0 U
U r\amaKnr uhardwal zUUU U.UY 0 2000 U.UY U 0
u raomala unarowal 2000 U.UV U ZUUg U.UY U u
I Suresh l.rumar Shama aza45 2( 0 uc445 5.b9 o u.v6
z unetan romal uhaturvedi a-tzt u.zz U 5125 u.zl u U
J l{al(esh tjamral Bnaldwal 749 u-55 U t4u 0.33 0 U
4 Suresh Kumar Siama and Tara 0evi Shama 69C1 u.59 u 6951 u.Jv U 0
5 Hmanshu tinarma and JaYa shalma 1 0000 u.4J U 1 UUUU 043 0 U

l6 Tara 0eviSharma And Suresh Klmar Shama 1 UUUU tJ 43 0 .I 
UUUU u.43 (,) 0

tt Kanta 0evi Bhardwal 144E5 uo5 U 't4 163 u u
l8 T- N. llhatrrrvadi 16000 0.69 0 1 600 69
19 Kumar Sharma And Sons HUF 37000 0 59000 2.55 0.95
20 Vivek Sharma 41 500 tt9 0 41 500 1.79 0 0

ru Sharma 62800 2.72 62800 2.72 0 0
22 Deepthi Sharma 78900 3.41 3.41 0 0

3 Ramruo Sharma And Sons HUF 53000 2.29 n 6400( 2.77 0 048
24 rya Sharma 63500 2.75 o z. t3 0 o
25 Tara Devi Shama 44 0 127700 5.52 1.O4

Kunr Sharma & Himanshu Sharma 173255 74 o 173255 7.49 o
77 Trinitron Control Svstem lP) ltd 1 500 0.06 0 't 500 o.05 0 0
28 Indo Electric 2000 0.09 0 2000 0.09 0 0
29 Maharaia Sales Coron lOm Prakashl 2.16 0 16 0 0

teel Private limited 4.34 10032s 34 0 0
31 Bhaqwati Gases ltd 89800 388 1 0000 043 0 (3 45)

(iii)Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
s SE ddi{atdtebqin{ and olttre ys OnttireShaffindnnfieyrr
NO lS.of tl oftotd dnrus ol dn

ltl|H
0# Inseaseldecrease

Recsr
lh.ol
dnm

T of total sharcs ofthe

Tara Devi Shama 103700 4.48 01.04.201 5 0 t03700 4.48

07.04.201 5 24000 Transfer 127700 552
127700 5.52 31.03.201 6 0 127700 5.52

2 Suresh Kumar Sharma. 62645 2.71 01.04.201 5 0 62645 2.71

07.04.2015 22800 Transfer 85'145 3.69
85445 3.69 31.03.2016 0 85445 369

3

Ramrup Shama and

Sons HUF.

53000 2.29 01.04.201 5 0 53000 2.25

07.04.2015 11000 Tlansfel 64000 2.77

64000 2.77 31.03.2016 0 64000 2.77
4 luresh Krumar Shama

rnd Sons HIJF

37000 160 01.04.201 5 0 37000 160

07.04.201 5 22000 Transfer 59000 2.55

59000 2.55 31.03.201 6 0 5S000 2.55

5. lhagwati Gases ttd 8S800 3.88 01.04.20r 5 0 89800 388
07.04.201 5 79800 Transler 10000 043

10000 0.43 31.03.2016 0 10000 0.43
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(iv)Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and
tun&tiue$ndtrUnnndnp

N(| For Each of theTopl0
Sharehnldrrr

lh.of lloltotCshnsofdn oft Increaseldecrease
chardnldhn

Remr
It.of
fim

ti of totalshansofthe

Bihar State Industria

0sEl6FEm

300000 12.97 01.04.2015 0 30000( 12.97

Itlil Movement

During The Year

300000 12.97 3r.03.201 6 0 300000 12.57

2 Rakesh Snnrat

Bhardwaj

104275 4.51 01.04.20r 5 0 104215 4.51

07.04.ml5 104275 lransfer 0 0

0 0 31.03.2016 0 0 0

3. S.K. Steel Pvr. [td. 105000 4.54 01.04.20r 5 0 105000 454
Nil Movement

Durino The Year

r05000 4.54 31.03.2016 0 105000 454
4. lhaskar Sharma 20855 0s 01 04.2015 0 20855 0.9

07.04.20r 5 20855 Transfer 41710 l8
41710 1.8 31.03.2016 0 41718 l8

5. Garima Shama 20855 09 01.04.201 5 0 20855 0.9

07.04.201 5 20855 Transfer 41710 1.8

41710 1.8 3t.03.2016 0 41710 18
6 Ralew Shama 20855 09 01.04.201 5 0 20855 0.9

07.04.201 5 20855 Tlansfer 41710 1.8

41710 1.8 31.03.2018 0 41710 t8
7 Suman Shama 20855 0s 0t 04 201 5 0 20855 09

07.04.201 5 20855 Transfer 41 710 1.8

41710 18 31.03.2016 0 41710 1.8

I Neha Shama 20855 0.s 01.04.201 5 0 20855 0.s

07.04.2015 20855 Transler 41710 l8
41710 18 31.03 2016 0 41710 18

I Madhuben l|hiafal

Gandhi

10000 043 01.04.20r 5 0 10000 043

0

Nil Movement

Durino The Year

10000 043 31.03.2016 0 r0000 043
o hatik Raiendra Gandhi 10000 043 01.04.20r 5 0 10000 043

Nil Movemenl

Durino The Year

10000 043 31.03.20r 6 0 r0000 043
t1 VipulRapndrahai

Gandhi

10000 n43 01.04.201 5 0 r0000 043

Nil Movement

J'ltrinn Thc Yaar

10000 043 31,03.2016 n 10000 043
12 Raiendra Dhir{lal

Gandhi

10000 043 01.04.20r 5 0 10000 043

Nil Movement

Durinq The Year

10000 0.4it 31.03.2016 0 10000 0.,13
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(v)Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

s Slwdddnadrbsiirinad of th ver ftmlative Shanlmlding

No Ih.of tiotbtd$ansolh
untEly

th Incteasetoectease

shateholdino
flEsol

Itlo. of Ioftotal shaH

olthr cnmanv

A. Directors

Suresh Kmar Shama 62645 271 01.04.2015 0 62645 271

u /.04.201 5 22890 Transfer 85'145 3.6S

85445 3.69 31.03.201 6 0 85445 3.69

2. Himanshu Sharma 62800 2.72 01.04.201 5 0 62800 272

NilMovement

0urinq The Year

62800 2.72

62800 2.72 31.03.201 6 0 62800 272
3 Jaya Sharma 63500 2.75 01.04.201 5 0 63500 2.75

Nrl M0vement

Durinq The Year

63500 275 31.03.2016 0 63500 2.75

4. Bipin Bihari lal 0 0 01.04.201 5 0 0 0

0 0 31.03.201 6 0 0 0
E Jagdish Chan&a Kaushik 0 0 01.04.201 5 0 0 0

0 0 31.03.201 6 0 0 0

B. lby llanooorial Farsonnol

l. Sukanta Bhattarcharjee 0 0 0r.04.201 5 0 0 0

0 0 31.03.20r 6 0 0 0

2 litu Damani 0 0 91.04.201 5 0 0 0

0 0 31 03.2016 0 0 0

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness ofthe Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured loans
archrdinn dmnsits

lJnsecured
I nans Deposits

Total
lndebtedness

Indebrtedness at the beginning of the financial year:
i)Principal Amount 0 0 0 0

ii)lnterest due but not paid 0 0 0 0

iii)lnterst accrued but not due 0 0 0 0

Total(i+ii+iia) 0 0 0 0

Ghange in Indebrtedness durinq the financial vear:
' Addition 25,3r,068 0 0 25,31,068
' Reduc{ion 2,64,510 0 0 2.64.510

Net Chanqe 22,66,558 0 0 22,66,558

Indebtedness at the end of the financlal vear:
i)Principal Amount 22,66,558 0 0 22,66,558
ii) Interest due but not Daid 0 0 0 0

iii) Interest a@rued but not due 0 0 0 0

Total {i+ii+iii) 22,66,558 0 0 22,66.558
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vt. REilUNERAT|ON OF DIREGTORS AND KFy MANAGERTAL PERSONNEL

A.Remuneration to Managing Director,Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

B.Remuneration to other directors:

s
hrticulars of R€muneration Name of MDMTD/ Manaoer t0Ial

Amount (Rs.)Mr Himanshu Sharma. MD Mr Suresh Kumar Sharma.

6foss salary (Rs):
WTt|

{al Salary as per prorflsions contaaned in section I 7{l | 0t lhe Inconp.tax Act, 1 961 11,40,000 8,40,000 I 9,80,000
lbl Value of pequisites uls l7(2) Incorire-tax Act, 1961 2,60,501 3,r8,S28 5,79,425
(cl ftofits in lieu of salary under section 1 7{3} of Incone tax Act, I 961

2 Stock 0ption

3 Supat Equity

4 Comission:

as lt of protit

' othsrs, specify

E 0thers { ITA and Retircmenl benetits I

Total lA) t4.00.501 11.58.928 25,55,429
Ceiling as perthe Act The remuneration is within limit prescribed under the Companies Act 201 3

s
Partiq{ars of Remuneraion Name ol Directols r0Ial

Amount {Rs.}Mrs Jaya Sharma Mr. Jaqdish Ghandra fdushik Mr tsDm Bhthafl Lal

Indelendenl u[ecto]s

' fue t01 altending board committee rneetings 10,000 r0,000 20,000
't,fiflIssnn

'Uthers, pleass speclty

Total (11 10,000 10,000 20,000
z 0tlEr Non.Erecutive Directors

'rce rfl anenomg D0ar0 cornmrttee meetngs 10.000 10,000
'Cormision

' othsls, please specity

Total (21
10.000 10.000

Total (B)-('l +21 10.000 r0.000 10 000 30.000
Total Managerial Reruneration 30,000
Geiling as perthe Act The remuneration is within limit prescribed under the Gompanies Act 2013

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY ITIANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

s
hrliculars of Remuneration {Key Managaial Personnd) l0tal

Amount {Rs.)GEO cF0 uompany uecretaly

llame Mr Sukanta Bhattarchariee Miss Ritu Damani

Gross salary

(al Salary as p€r plovasions c0ntained in section 1 7(1)

of the Income-Tax Act. 1 961

N(lT

APPTICABIE

2,65,282 2,40,000 5,05,282

lbl Value of pe4uisites ulsl 7{2) Incdne.lax Act, I 961

lc) Profits in lieu of salary under section l7l3) In.

come.Tax Acl. 1961

Stock 0otion

SwEat Equitv

4 Gormission:

. as l( ol profit

.olhers, specify...

5 0then, please specity

Total 2,65,282 2,40,000 5,05,282
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VII. PENALTIES/ PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENGES:

Section of the
Companies Act

Authority [RD /
NCLT / COURTI

Psnahv

Punishment

Compounding

B. DIBECIORS

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

C. OIHER OFFICERS ItI DEFAUTT

Penaltv

Punishment

Compounding

ANNEXURE D

DETALSPERTAINING TO REMUNERATONAS REQUIRED UNDERSECNON 197(12)OFTI{ECOMPANIESACI,2Ol3READw|TH
RULE q1) OF TTIE COITIPANIES (APPOINTIIIENTAND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014,

i) The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary during the finan-
cial year 2015-'16 and ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Gompany
for the financial year 201 5-1 6 are as under:

Note: No other Diredor otherthan the Managing Direclor and Whole Time Direc{or received any remuneration otherthan sitting fees
during the financial year 2015-16.
ii) In the financial year, there rrrras an increase of 18.48% in the
median rcmuneration of employees.
iii) There were 36 permanent employees on the rolls of Com-
pany as on March 31,2016.
iv) The average increase in the remuneration of management
employees in the last financial year was 7.34o/o. ln order to en-
sure that remuneration reflects Company's performance, the
remuneration of some employees is also linked to organizational
performance apart from an individual performance.
v) The remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel put to-
gether is Rs.30,84,711.00 which increased by 2.75o/o from Rs.
29,82,401 .OO as against a decrease ol 34o/o in profit before tax
in the financial year 2015-20'16.
vi) Average percentage increase made in the salaries of em-
ployees otherthan the managerial personnel in the financidl year
2015-16 was 11.75o/o whereas the increase in the managerial
remuneration for the same financial year was 7 .%o/o.
vii) The market capitalization of the Company as on 31 st March,
2016 increased by 36.240/0, when compared to that of 31 st March,
Place:Kolkata
Date : 30th May, 2016

2015. The Company has not made any public offer in the
recent past and accordingly comparison of public offer price
and the current market price of the Company's shares will not
be relevant.
viii) The key parameters for the variable component of remu-
neration availed by the directors are considered by the Board
of Directors based on the recommendations of the Nomina-
tion and Remuneration Commiftee as per the Remuneration
Policy for Directors and Senior Management Personnel.
ix) The Managing Director is the highest paid Director. No em-
ployee received remuneration higher than the Managing Di-
rector.
x) lt is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid during the
Financial Year ended 31st March,.2016 is as per the Remu-
neration Policy of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board
S K Sharma

Chairman
(DlN:00041150)

sl.

No.

Name oT ulreclor/
KMP and Designation

Ha000trsnnsalrot 0f sd| unedrlt

mdar rgnfisatin of ar*yeesFnancial Year 2015.16 {Rs.l Yea20lS16

1 Mr. Himanshu Sharma. MD 1 4,00,501 020 13 33

Mr.Suresh Kumar Sharma, WTD 11,58,928 2.60 11.03

3 Mr. Sukanta Bhaftachariee. CFO 2,65,282 3S3 2.52

4 Ms. fi,itu Damani, CS 2,40,000 20.00 2.28
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Independent Auditor's Report
To
The Members of
Bhagawati Orygen Limited
Report on the Financial Stetements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Bhagawati Orygen Limited (hereinafier referred to as'the Com-
pany'), which comprise the balance sheet as at 3'lst March 2016, the statement of profit and loss and the cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
ilanagement's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the mafters stated in Section 134(5) of the CompaniesAct, 2013 Cthe Act')
with respect to the preparation and presentation of these finaricial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including theAccounting Standards specified under Section 133 of theAct, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Ac-
counts) Rules, 20'14. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions oftheAct for safeguarding the assets ofthe Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregulari-
ties; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness ofthe accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation ofthe financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have taken into account the
provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor consid-
ers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procqdures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriate-
ness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
financial statementrs.
Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial state-
ments give the information required by the Ac{ in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 st March 201 6 and its profit and
its cash flows for the year ended on that date.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1) As required bythe Companies (Audito/s Report) Order, 2016 ('the Orde/) issued bythe Central Government of lndia in

terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of theAct, we give in the Annexure-'A', a statement on the matters specified
in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the said order.
As reguired by Section '143 (3) of the Act, we report that:
we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit
in our opinion proper books ofaccount as'required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.
the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss and the cash flow statement dealt with by this report are in agreement
with the books of accounts.
in our opinion,lhe aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

2)
a)

b)

c)

d)
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e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31st March 2016, and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 st March 2016 from being appointed as director in terms
of Section 1 64(2) of the Act.

f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our report in AnnexureJB' and

S) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us:

i. the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements.(Refer
Note 26.1'l to the financial statements);

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseable losses;

iii. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund bv the
Company.

For CHATURVEDI & CO.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.302137E

Place: Kolkata
Dated: May 30, 2016

S.C.Chaturvedi
Partner
Membership No.12705

(ii)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(i ii)

(v)

(v)

Annexure-'A' to the lndependent Auditor's Report
(Referred to in Paragraph 1 of "Other Legal and Regulatory requirements" of our Audit Report)

(i) In respect of Fixed Assets:
(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed

assets.
(b) As explained to us, the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals. No serious

discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the

Company, title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company.
In resoect of Inventories:
As explained to us, the physical verification of inventory has been conducted by the management at reasonable intervals.
In our opinion, the frequency of the verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its
businEss
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the procedures and frequency of physical
verification of inventories followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Com-
pany and nature of its business
The Company has maintained proper records of inventory. As explained to us, there were no material discrepancies
noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to the book records.
According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secureo or unse-
cured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section
189 of the Companies Act, 2013 as such provisions of paragraph 3(iii) of the said order are not applicable.
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provi-
sions of section 1 85 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and investments made.
The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of directives issued by the Reserve Bank
of India and provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules
framed there under. According to the information and explanations given to us, no order has been passed by the Company
Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other Tribunal on the company
in respect of the aforesaid deposits
Based on the information available and explanations given to us, the maintenance of Cost records has not been specified
by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for any of the products manufactured by the
company.

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the books of

(v)
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Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Duty of customs, Duty of excise, Value added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues as
applicable with the appropriate authorities. There were no un-disputed statutory dues as at the end of the year
outstanding for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and as per the records of the Company examined by us, the
particulars of dues of Sale tax and Income tax, which have not been deposited on account of any dispute as at 31st
March 2016 are given below:

Sl. No. {ame of the Statut( tlature of dues Amount (ln Rs.)
Period to which the

amount relates
Forum where

pending

1

West Bengal VAT
Act & CST Act VAT & CST 1 5,1 8,996/- 2006-2007

WB Gommercial
Tax Appellate and
Revisional Board

2

lncome Tax Act lncome Tax 3,97,860/- 2010-201'l DCIT (Appeal),
Circle 8(1), Kolkata

3,05,320/- 2012-2013 DCIT, Kolkata

15.950/- 2007-2008 DCIT. Kolkata

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment
of dues to any financial institutions or banks. The company has not issued any debentures during the year.

(ix) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
during the year. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans have been
applied for the purpose for which they were raised.

(x) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers
or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company,
the Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by
the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a N id h i Com-
pany as such provisions of paragraph 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the company,
all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and Section 188 of theAct where applicable
and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable account-
ing standards.

(xiv) Accoiding to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company,
the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company,
the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them as such
provisions of paragraph 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of IndiaAct 1934.

FoTCHATURVEDI & CO,

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.302137E

Place: Kolkata
Dated: May 30, 2016

S.C.Chaturvedi
Partner
Membership No.12705
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Annexure-'B' to the Independent Auditor's Report

We have audited the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of Bhagawati Oxygen Limited (hereinafter referred to
as the Company') as of 31st March 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.
Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ('lCAl'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, inciuding adher-
ence to companyrs policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection offrauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.
Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our
audit. We conducied our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial ControlJover Financial
Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by lCAl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the CompaniesAct, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adeglate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system
over ftnancial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting in-
cluded obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstate-
ment of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or erro
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting
Meaning of Internal Financial Gontrols over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with gener-
ally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedureslhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transac-
tions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance thaf transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
leceipls and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and direc-
tors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention ortimely detection of unauthorized acquisi-
tion, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of lnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk
that the intemal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditi6ns, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion
According to the and based on our audit, in our opinion, the Company has generally
maintained, in al inancial controls over financial reporting and such internal financiil
controls over fin effectively as of 31st March 2016, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal controls stated
in the "Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting" issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of lndia.

For CHATURVEDI & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.302137E

Place: Kolkata
Dated: May 30, 2016

S.C.Chaturvedi
Partner
Membership No.12705
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BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED

I

(1)

(a)

(b)

(21

(a)

(b)

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 st MARGH 201 6

PARTICUI.ARS

EQUITYAND LIABILITIES
Shareholderc'funds
Share Capital
Reserves and Surplus

Non-cunent liabilities
Long term borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities (net)

(4) Currentliabilities
(a) Short term bonowings
(b) Trade payables
(c ) Other current liabilities
(d) Short term provisions

TOTAL

il ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Fixed assets

Tangible assets
Capital Work in Progress
Non-current investments
Long term loans and advances
Other non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories

Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Short term loans and advances
Other current assets

TOTAL

As per our rcpoft of even date attached

For Chaturvedi and Company
Ghartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 302137E

S G Chaturvedi
Partner
(llemberchip No. - 12705)

Place : Kolkata
Date : 30th May 2016

t,IOTE

No.

'l

2

3

4

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

AS AT
31ST MARCH 2016

23,129,690
94,493,259

2,266,558

3,945,342

5,222,350
16,370,834

4,527,473
2,279,493

152,234,999

21,286,116
3,485,493

22,252,044
6,029,588

434,514

4,107,247

28,4'tO,454

41,779,542
24,450,001

1 52,234,999

(Figures in INR)
AS AT

31ST MARCH 201 5

23,1 29,690

87,764,627

4,346,417

3,316,120

20,865,093
4,211 ,585
3,249,110

146,882,642

21,188,444

24,4't4,460
5,964,960

12,536,031

35,684,824
41,218,9't7
5,875,006

@2

5

6

7

8

(b)

(c)
(d)

(21

(a)

(b)

(c)
(d)

(e)

Significant Accounting Policies and Additional Information 26

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Suresh Kr Sharma
Chairman
(DlN:00041150)

Himanshu Sharma
Managing Director
(DlN: 00041181)

Sukanta Bhattacharjee
Chief Finance Ofiicer

Ritu Damani

Company Secretary
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BHAGAVIIATI OXYGEN LIMITED

STATEMENTOF PROFITAND LOSS FOR LOSS FORTHEYEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2010
(Figures in INR)

For the year ended
3lSTMARCH 2015

127,870,747

10,912.239

116,958,508

7.168,140
,t24.126.64E

53,773,698

31,651,264
(9,490,588)

14,170,446

5,157,034

238,910

2,290,893

13,2'17,262

111.008.919

,t3,.t17,729

'13,1'17,729

3,352,000
(43s,009)

10,204,738

4.41

4.4'l

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

PARTICUI.ARSI

I Revenue from operations (Gross)

Less : Excise Duty
Revenue from operations (Net)

ll Other Income
lll Total Revenue (l+ll)
lV Expenses

Cost of materials consumed
Purchases of stock in trade
Change in inventories of finished goods and work
in progress & stock in trade
Manufacturing expenses
Employee benefits expenses
Finance cost
Depreciation & amortization expenses
Other and administrative expenses
Total Expenses

As per our report of even date attached

For Chaturvedi and Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 302137E

S C Ghaturvedi
Paftner
(Membership No. - 12705)

Place : Kolkata
Date : 30th May 2016

Profit before Exceptional item & Extraordinary item and tax (lll-lv)
Exceptional item & Extraordinary item
Profit before tax (V+Vl)
Less : Tax expenses
1) Current tax
2) Defened tax
Profit for the year (Vll-Vlll)
Earnings per share (of Rs.l0/- each)
(a) Basic
(b) Diluted

SignifcantAccounting Policies andAdditional Information 26

8,971,289

2,643,734
(401,075)

6,728,630

2.91

2.91

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Suresh Kr Sharma
Chairman
(DlN:00041'150)

Himanshu Sharma
Managing Director
(DlN: 00041181)

Sukanta Bhaftacharjee
Chief Finance Officer

NOTE

No.

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

For the year ended
31ST MARCH 2016

112,680,917

10.456.s06

102,224,411

4.809.517

1 07.033.928

47,152,557
6,051,519

8,428,784

15,140,893

5,883,540

282,165
2,340,534

'12.782.647

98.062.639

8,971,289v
VI

vtl
vltl

IX

x

Ritu Damani

Company Secretary
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BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2016
AS AT

3'tsT MARCH 2016
A. Gash flow from operating activities :

Net Profit before Tax and extraordinary item
Add: Depreciation

Interest charged
Bad & Doudfful Debt Written Off
Hire Charges

Less: lnteresVDividend lncome
Liabilities writen-off
Profit on sale of fixed assets
Profit on Sale of Tata Floater Fund- Growth
Operating Profit before working capital changes
Adjustments for :-
Inventories
Trade & other Receivables
Short term Loans & Advances
Short term Borrowings
Trade Payables & other Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities
Short Term Provision for Employee Benefit
Change in TDS Receivable
Cash generated from operations
Tax paid & adjusted
Cash-Flow before Extra Ordinary ltems
Net cash from Operating Activities (A)
B. Gash Flow from Investing Activities:
Long term Loan & Advances Given
Investment in Capital Work in Progress
Purchase of Fixed Assets
Sale of fixed assets
Other Investment made
InteresV Dividend received
Net cash used in Investing Activities: (Bl
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities:
Fihance Cost ( Interest Paid)
Bonowings from Bank
Earnest Money Deposit
Security Deposit
Net cash used in Financing Activities (c)
Net (Decrease)/lncrease in Cash & Cash equivalents
Cash & Cash equivalents at start of the year
Cash & Cash equivalents at close ofthe year

8,971,291
2,340,534

282,165

98,086
(4,1 65,269)

(105,094)
(498,736)
6,922,977

8,428,784
7,274,370

(18,574,995)
1,906,230

(4,494,259)
315,888
135,382

(332,923)
1,591,49

(3,415,81 o)
(1.834.356)
(1,834,356)

(64,628)
(3,485,4s3)
(2,5O3,112)

1 70,000
3,500,001
3.326.420

943,1 88

(380,251)
1,832,044

1,451,793
(A+B+C) 560,625

41 ,218,917
41,779,542

(Figures in INR)
AS AT

31ST MARCH 201 5

13,117,729
2,290,893

238,910
334,212
24,307

(4,399,831)
(21,429)
(18,055)

(549,261)
11,017,475

(9,490,589)
(11 ,488,873)

9,781,562

(180,425)
(2,831,832)
8.012.257\
(3,012,2571

(237,572)
35,000

800,000
3,520,907
4,118,335

(238,e10)
3,316,120
(248,460)

(1,360,640)
'l,468,110
2,574,188

38,644,729
41,218,917

The notes refened to above form an integral part of the financial stafemenfs
As per our repod of even date attached 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Chaturvedi and Company
Ghartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 302137E

S G Chaturvedi
Paftner
(Membership No. - 12705)

Place : Kolkata
Date : 30th May 2016

Suresh Kr Sharma
Chairman
(DlN : 00041150)

Himanshu Sharma
Managing Director
(DlN:00041181)

Sukanta Bhaftacharjee
Chief Finance Officer

Ritu Damani

Company Secretary
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BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED

NOTESTOTHE FIMNCIALSTATEMENTS FORTHEYEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 201 6
AS AT

31ST MARCH 2016

40,000,000
40,000,000

23,1 29,690

23,1 29,690

23,1 29,690

23,129,690

300,000 (12.97o/o\

173,255 (7.49o/o)

1,500,000

sgBzg

86,204,700
6,728,630

92,933,330
94,493,259

(Figures in INR)
AS AT

31ST MARCH 201 5

40,000,000
40,000,000

23,1 29,690

23,129,690

23,129,690

23,1 29,690

300,000 (12.97%\

173,255 (7.49%\

1,500,000

25,802+
ul_n"

76,030,957
10,204,738

30.997

86,204,698

87,764,627

PARTICUI.ARS

1 Share Capital
1.,1 AUTHORISED

40,00,000 (PY 40,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each

,1.2 ISSUED SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID UP

23,12,969 (P.Y 23,12,969) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each

1,3 Reconciliation of Number of Shares
Shares outstanding as at the beginning ofthe year
Add: Shares issued/ bought back
Shaies outstanding as at end of the year

1.4 List of shareholders holding more than 5% of the total
number of shares issued by the Company :

Name of share holder
Bihar State Industrial Development

Suresh Kumar Sharma jtly Himanshu Sharma

2 RESERVEAND SURPLUS
2.1 Gapital Reserves (A)

2.2 Revaluation Reserve (B)

Opening Balance

, Less : Depreciation adjustment
Closing Balance

2.3 InvestmentAllowance Reserve (C )

2.4 General Reserve (D)

2.5 Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss (E)

Opening Balance at the beginning of the year
Add : Profit for the year
Less : Depreciation adiustment*
Closing Balance
Total (A+B+C+D+E)

1.5 Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attached to Equity Shares
The Company has issued only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10l per share. Each holder of
Equity Share is entitled to one vote per share. ln the event the Board of Directors of the Company proposes any
dividend, it will be subject to the approval of the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.
In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets
of the Company. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of Equity Shares held by the shareholders.

* Pursuant to the enac{ment of the Companies Act, 201 3 the company has applied the estimated useful life as specified
in Schedule- ll. Accordingly the carrying value is being depreciated over the revised remaining useful life. The written
down value of fixed assetswhose lives have expired as at lstApril 2Ol4have been adjusted in the opening balance of
Profit & Loss A,/c amounting to Rs.30,997/-.
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BHAGAVIIATI OXYGEN LIMITED

NOTES TO T}E FIMNCIALSTATEMENTS FORTHE YEAR ENDED 3ISTMARCH ZI16
ASAT

PARTICULARS

LONGTER]II BORROWNGS
3.1 Secured term loan from banks (Car Loan)

31ST MARCH 2016

Car loan is taken from HDFC Bank Ltd with repayment schedule of 60
instal lament starting fom 5/7/'1 5 with rate of interest 1 0 03%

Total

DEFERRED TAX LtABtL|TIES (NET)

Defened tax liability (net) included in the balance sheet
comprises of the difference between book & tax depreciation :

Opening Balance

Difference between book and tax depreciation current year
Closing Balance Net Deferred Tax Liabilities

SHORTTERM BORROWNGS
Secured - Overdraft facilities from banks under lien of TDR 5,222,350

Total 8.222.950

TRADE PAYABLES

Sundry Creditors
(i) Due to MSMEs *

(i) Due to others

Total

2,266,558

2,266,558

4,346,417
(401,075)
3,945,342

(Figures in INR)
AS AT

3lSTMARCH 2015

4,785,426
(439,009)

4,346,4't7

3,316,120
3,316,1 20

zolos,osg
20,865,093

101,5't5
4,110,O70

4,211,585

261,747
180,634

247,757
78,111

2,480,861

3,249,110

* Based on the information available with the management, there no dues outstanding to the parties covered
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises that required to be disclosed under the MSMED Act, 2006

309,642
225,439
270,409

98,141
't,375,862

2,279,493

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
(i) Statutory liabilities
(ii) Others

Total

SHORTTERM PROVISIONS

Provision for employee benefits
(i) Salary
(ii) Leave encashment
(iii) Medical allowance
(iv) Provident fund
Provision for Taxation (lncome Tax)

(net of advance tax & ITDS Rs.16,096,029 (P.Y Rs.12,347,296)
Total
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BHAGAVI'ATI OXYGEN LIMITED

NOTES TOTHE FIMNOALSTATEMENTS FORTHE YEAR ENDED 3lSTMARCH 2016
ASAT

31ST MARCH 2016

1 35,000

2,778,938

1,238,732

2,636,163

2,905,170

2,584,822

1,443,979

529,240

8,000,000

22,252,O4

4,152,670
3,655,644

10,099,374

9,965,762

8,000,000

684,416
2,400,000

945,172

2,000,000

6,029,588

(Figures in INR)
AS AT

3lSTMARCH 201 5

1 35,000

2,778,938

1,238,732

2,256,393

2,639,737

2,391 ,177

'l,443,979

3,530,505

8,000,000

24,279,460

4,152,670
3,291,825

12,261 ,790
12,737,199

8,000,000

637,788

2,400,000

927,172

2,000,000

5,964,960

PARTICUI.ARS

IO. NON-CURRENT INVESTIIIENTS
(Valued at Cost)

I 0.'l Non-Trade lnvestments
Invetment in Equitv Instruments (Quoted)

90000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10.00 (P.Y 90000 equity of
Rs. 10.00 each of Bhagwati Gases Ltd

925 (PY. 925) Units of Rs.3004.26 each of
Goldman Sachs GOLD BEES

400 (P.Y 400) Units of Rs.3096.83 each of
SBI GOLD GETS

lnvestment in Mutual Funds lQuoted)
118853.91 3 units of Rs. 22 1 8 each (P.Y. 1 03020.307 units

of Rs. 21.90 each) DSP Blackrock Balanced Fund- Dividend
107026.103 units of Rs 27.15 each (P.Y. 96500.510 units of
Rs. 27.35 each) HDFC Prudence Fund- Dividend

60201 .419 units of Rs 42.94 each (P.Y 55327.148 units

of Rs. 43.22 each) HDFC Top 200 Fund- Dividend
1U680.1 39 units of Rs. 1 3.79 each (PY 1 04680.1 39 units
of Rs. 13.79 each) Reliance Gold Savings Fund-Growth
247 .95O units of Rs. 21 34 46 each (P.Y. 1786.662 units
of Rs. 1976.03 each) Tata Floater Fund- Growth

Investment in Paftnerchip Firm (unouotedl Anchor Enterorise
Total

Aggregate cost of quoted investments - equity
Aggregate market value of quoted investments - equity

Aggregate cost of quoted investments - mutual fund
Net Asset Value

Aggregate cost of unquoted investments

1.1 LONG TERIiI LOANS AND ADVANCES
(Unsecured, considered good)

Earnest Money Deposit

Security Deposit with related parties (Refer Note No.26.'18)

Security Deposit with others

Other advances

Total
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BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED

NOTES TOTHE FIMNCI,ATSTATEMENTS FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST TUARCH 201 6
ASAT

3lsT MARCH 2016

434,514

434,514

2,962,500

1.'t44,747

4.107.247

4,034,056

24,376,398
28,470,4il

100,581

223,674
41,210,287

245,000

41.779.542

21,265,459
1,840,629

1 ,343,913
24,450,OO1

(Figures in INR)
AS AT

3lSTMARCH 2015

9,701,O41

2,E34,990

12,536,031

3,560,593

32,124,231

35,684,924

39,555

343,121
40,456,24'l

380,000
41,219,9,17

3,811,954
8/8,176

1,214,876
5,875,006

PARNCULARS

12 OTHERNON CURRENTASSETS
Unexpired interest - car loan

13 INVENTORIES (Refer Note No. 26.3 )

(as valued & certified by the management)
Stock-in-trade

Others (Cylinders)

Total

14 TRADE RECEIVABLES
'Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the
date they are due for payment

Others
Total

(i) Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received
(ii) Advances due from Related parties
(ii) Balance with Central Excise Authorities

Total

Total

15 CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(a) Cash on hand
(b) Bank Balance
(i) Current accounts

'(ii) Term Deposit Accounts*
(c) Other Bank Balance

' (i) Term Deposit Accounts*
(with maturity of more than 12 months)

Total

*Term deposits includes Rs. 31568712/- (PY: Rs.12866383/-) are held as margin money against various borrow
ings and guarantees given by banks

16 SHORTTERT LOANSANDADVANCES
(Unsecured, considered good)

?E



BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FIMNCIALSTATEMENTS FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31STMARCH 2016
For the year ended

3lsT MARCH 2016

94,1 08,51 3

2,425,390
96,533,903

6,O82,757

10,064,257

16,147,014

112,680,917

3,326,420
35,227

838,849

1 05,094
498,736

5,191

4,809.517

47,152,557
47,,152,557

5,660,426
391,093

6,051,519

12,536,03'l

12,536,031

4,107,247
4,107,247

8,428,784

(Figures in INR)
For the year ended
3lSTMARCH 2015

99,114,300

3,157,534

102,271,834

4,295,696

2'l,303,217
25,598,913

127,970,747

3,520,907

2,141,764
878,924
37,800

18,055
549,261

2't,429
7,168,140

53,773,698

53,773,698

4,142,560
27,508,704
31,651,264

3,045,443

3,045,443

12,536,031

12,536,031

18

PARTICUI.ARS

17 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Manufacturcd goods
Industrial Gases - oxygen
Power - wind

Total - Sale of manufactured goods

Traded goods
Industrial Gases - orygen
Specialty Gases & Cylinders
Total - Sale of traded goods

Total

OTHER INCOME
Interestfrom fixed depositswith banks (ITDS Rs.332923f, PY Rs.381743/-)
Miscellaneous Income
Dividend

Cylinder Hire Charges
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets
Profit on Sale of Tata Floater Fund- Growth
Liabilities no longer required written back

Total

COST OF iIATERIALS CONSUT'ED
Industrial Gases - orygen

Total

PURCHASE OF TRADED GOODS
Industrial Gases - orygen
Specialty Gases & Cylinders

Total

19

20

21 CHANGE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND STOCK IN TRADE

Opening Stock
Finished goods

Closing Stock
Finished goods

(lncrease)/ Decrease in inventories of finished
goods and work in progress and stock in trade - Total
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For the year ended

31ST MARCH 2016

3,526,031

7,625,908

408,688

3,438,710

14't,s56
15,140,893

4,243,234
326,366

1 ,313,940
5,E83,540

1 ,309,812
124,O04

't,433,8'16

1,410,796

23,020

23,020
10,225

1,432

34,677
on sum assured 3,120,142

LIC (1994-96) ultimate
'lo/o to 3Yo

depending on age
8% p.a

6.10o/o

282,165

(Figures in INR)
For the year ended
3l STMARCH 2015

3,465,463

8,200,621

94,996

2,153,475
255,891

14,170,446

3,892,523
243,602

1,020,909

5,1 57,034

1,207,644
115,920

1,323,564
1,233,258

90,306

90,306
9,364

1,158

'| 00,828
2,691,838

LIC (1994-96) ultimate
1%to 3%

depending on age

8o/o p.a

6.05%

238,910

238,91 0

PARTICULARS

22 MANUFACTURINGAND OPERATING EXPENSES
Stores & Spares consumed
Power & Fuel
Repair & Maintenance to:
Buildings

Plant and Machinery

Others

Total

23 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
Salaries, Wages, Gratuity and Bonus
Contribution to Provident and other Funds
Workman and staff welfare expenses
Total

Present value of past service benefit
Add: Current service cost

'Less: 
Fund value as on renewal date(net of settlements & inclusive of interest)

Additional contribution for existino fund
Add: Current service cost

The Company has classified the larious benefits provided to the employees as under :

(a) Defined Contribution Schemes : Contribution to Provident Fund, PensionFund are covered under defined contribution plans and amount of Rs. 326366f {PY:

Rs.2436021) contributed to those lunds duringthe year have been recognized as expenses in lhe financial statements.

{bl Defined Benefit Schemes : The gratuity fund of employees is managed by trustees by way of taking a policy in [ife Insurance Corporation of lndia and the
present value of the obligation is determined based on the acturial valuation done by UC. The component ol net benefit expenses recognized in the statement

of Profit & Loss during the year is given as under :

Life coverage premium

Add: Service Tax on life coverage premium

Add: Interest

Total liability at the end of the year towards gratuity
Total value of service gratuity including life coverage

Acturial Assumptions:
Mortality rate

Withdrawal rate

Discount rate

Salary escalation

24 FINANCE COST

Interest on term loan

Interest paid on others

Total

a?

282,165
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For the year ended

31ST MARCH 2016

1,638,284
243,555

67,5'19
1,520,298
'1,980,000

34,115

65,325
1 0,01 3
22,253
12,500

2,365,893
302,250

1,163,845
197,642
753,770
536,468
s46,831
333,341
661,526
327.219

't2.782.647

(Figures in INR)
For the year ended
31 ST MARCH 201 5

1,574,428
78,484

134,799
1,140,689
1,980,000

30,899

63,500
10,000
6,000

12,500
3,275,675

409,670
701,741
231,931
214,826
522,966
577,441

I ,917,501

334,212
13,2'17,262

PARTICUI.ARS

25 OTHER AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Rent
Rates, Taxes & Licence Fee
Bank charges and commission
Travelling and Conveyance
Di rectors' Rem u neration
Directors'Sitting Fee
Auditors' Remuneration :

(i) StatutoryAudit
(ii) Limited Review Report
(iii) Certification
(iv) TaxAudit
Miscellaneous Expenses
Communication Exoenses
Legal and Professional Expenses
Advertisement Exoenses
Charity and Donation
Insurance Charges
Vehicle Running & Maintanance
Contribution to Scientific Research Institutions
ForeignTech/Consultancy Fees
Sundry Balance Written Off
Total

26. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

26.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis
of accounting following generally accepted accounting principles in India (GAAP) and comply with the accounting
standards prescribed by the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 and the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 to the extent applicable.

26.2 FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION
i) Depreciation on fixed assets have been calculated as per Part C of Schedule ll of the CompaniesAct, 2013
ii) Depreciation on the amount of revaluation of fixed assets is adjusted againstfixed assets revaluation reserve created
at the time of revaluation.

26.3INVENTORIES
Inventories are valued as under:
Stores & Spares -At cost.
Finished Goods and Work in Progress -At cost or market value, whichever is less.

26.4INVESTMENTS
lnvestments that are readily realisable and are intended to be held for not more than one year from the date, on which
investments are made, are classified as current investments All other investments are classified as long term
investments. Long term investments and Current investments are stated at cost, unless there is a permanent decline in
value thereof.

26.5 RECOGNITION OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
Sales are accounted inclusive of Excise Duty but excluding Sales Tax
Items of income and expenditure are accounted for on accrual basis Due to uncertainity as regards to ultimate
collection on account of claims for escalation and minimum oftake guarantee, the revenue recognition is postponed as
perAS-9 issued by the lCAl till bills are raised for such claims on settlement with the customers.
Cenvat Credit on purchases is adjusted from the Excise Duty payable during the year.
Preliminary Expenses are written off over a number of years as defened revenue expenditure.
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26.6EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Retirement benefits are provided in the accounts on accrual basis
Annual contribution towards Gratuity liability is funded with Life Insurance Corporation of India in accordance with the
Gratuity scheme of LlC.

Short term employee benefits are recognized as expense as per company's scheme.
26.7 TAXATION

Provision is made for Income Tax liability, which is likely to arise on the results of the year at the current rate of tax in
accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 .

The difference that result between the profit offered for income taxes and the profit as per the flanacial statements are
identified and thereafter a deferred tax asset or a deferred tax liability is recorded for timing difference namely that
originate in one accounting period and reverse in another, based on the tax effect of the aggregate amount being
considered. The tax effect is calculated on the accumulated timing difference at the end of the accounting period based
on the prevailing enacted or subsequently enacted regulations. Defened tax assets are recognized only if there is
reasonable certainity that they will be realised and are reviewed for the appropriateness of their respective carrying
value at each balance sheet date.

26.8 SEGMENT REPORTING
The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the company. Revenue
and expenses are identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the company.

26.9 PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS
Provisions involving substantial degree estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a present obligation
as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be outflow of resources. Contingent liabilities are not recog-
nized but are disclosed in notes. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

26.10 Excise Duty
Excise Duty on sales for the year has been disclosed as reduction from the turnover

26.11 Contingent liabilities in respect of

Amount / Rs.

31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

(a) Bank Guarantees given by the Company to its customers
((Margin Money Rs. 5434251 (P.Y Rs. 5366383 ))

4,573,187 4,686.142

(b) Sales tax and Income tax demands against which the Company
has filed representations for which no provision is considered
required as the Company is hopeful of successful outcome

2,238,126 2, t95,346

26.12 Captial Commitments : Capital commitments during the year was Rs.8,69,25,037/- (PY Rs Nil)
26.13 Consumption of Stores and Spares including consumption for Repair and Maintenance

Amount / Rs.

3'l-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Value % Value o/o

Indigenous /, c14,965 100 5,807,302 97

lmported 162,523 ?

Total 7,514,985 100 5.969.825 100

10
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26.14 CIF Value of lmported Goods

Amount / Rs.

31-Mar-'l6 31-Mar-15
Stores & Spares 162,523
Traded Goods 71.297 13,967,502

Total 71,297 14j30,025

26.15 Earning & Expenditure in foreign curency

26.16 Disclosure Requirement of AS-17 (Segment Reporting)
Amount / Rs

Amount / Rs.

31-Mar-16 3'l-Mar-15
Eaming in foreign currency

Expenditure in foreign currency 525,251

31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-'15

Segment Revenue Segment Assets

Gases 1M.608.537 130,459,701 Gases 136.053.447 132,411,91'l

Power 2,425,390 3,157,534 Power 13,43't,763 13.694.856

Total (a) 107.033.927 133,61 7,235 Others 2,749,789 775.875

Unallocable revenue (b) Total 152,234,999 146.882.642

Total (a + b) 107.033.927 133,61 7,235

Segment Results Segment Liabilities

Gases 9,727,913 12.996.980 Gases 30,662.621 31 ,641,908

Power (474,459" 359,659 Power 4 087

Other unallocable expenses

(net of unallocable income)

Others 3,945,U2 4,346,417

Capital & Reserves 117.622.949 110,894.317

Tota 9253 4U 13,356,639 Total 152,234,999 '146,882,642

Interest & other charge 282,168 238,910

Total Profrt before tax 8,971,289 13,1't7,729

Provision for tax (2,242,659) (2,912,s91)

Total Profit aftertax 6.728.630 10.204.738

Exceptional items

Net Profit after exceptional items 6.728.630 10,204,738
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26.17 Earning per Share

Amount / Rs.

31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Face Value per Share 10 10

Net Profit after Tax 6,728,630 't0,204,738

No. of Ordinary Equity Shares 2,312,969 2,312,969

Basic and Dluted Earnings per Share 2 9',1 441

26.'18 Related Party disclosures- As identified by the management and relied upon by the auditors
a) List cf Related Parties and description of relationship

(i) Key Management Personnel Mr S K Sharma
Mr Himanshu Sharma
Mrs Jaya Sharma
Mr Sukanta Bhattacharjee
Ms Ritu Damanr

(ii)Relatives of Key Management Personnel Mrs Tara Devi Sharma
Mrs Deepthi Sharma

(iii) Parties under Common Control Bhagawati Steel (P) Ltd
b) Transactions with Pelated Parties: Dindayal Ramrup Figures rn Rs.

Mother Vision (P) Ltd

Nature of Transactions
Key Management

Personnel fuHiveson<ry ltargementfttsond Pailies under Conrmm Control

31-Mar-16 31-Mar-1 31-Mar- l6 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-16 31-Mar- 15

Rent Paid

Reimbursement of Salaries etc.

Directors' Reinuneration

0irector's Sitting Fee

Bemuneration oaid to KMP

1,980,000

10,000

505,282

1,980,000

2,500

455,244

853,228 813,228 504,000

377.200

504,000

346,850

0utstanding at the end of the year

receivablei loavable)
2,538,396 2,284,092 831 435 808,341

26.19 Quantitative Details

(i) Capacity, Production 31-Mar-2016 31-Mar-2015

Particulars Unit Licenced
Caoacitv

Instailed
Capacitv Production Licenced

Canacitv
lnstailed
Caoacitv

Oxygen Gas & Conversion of
LOX to GOX NM3 NA 1 4040000 1 07521 86 NA 14040000 11340667

Dissolved Aceytylene NM3 NA 0 0 NA 0 n

Nitrogen Gas Nlfi1 NA 0 0 NA 0 0

Power NA 6570000 891 660 NA 6570000 1 1 95957
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(ii) Production. Purchase. Sales. Stock 31-Mar-16 3'l-Mar-'l5

Particulars Unit Quantity Value (Rs) Quantity r'alue (Rs

opening stock
urygen uas 6 uonversron oT

LOX to GOX NM3 0 0 0 0
Power KWH 0 0 U 0
Purchases
Liquid Oxygen SM3 t141902 4715255E 7605444 53773698
Power KWH 0 0 0 0
Production
Oxygen Gas & Conve6ion of
LOX to GOX NM3 10752186 0 1'1340667 0
Power KWH E91 660 0 1 1 95957 0
Sales
Oxygen Gas & Conversion of
LOX to GOX NM3 10752186 941 0851 3 1 1 340667 991 1 4300
Power KWH E91 660 2425390 1 1 95957 31 57534
closing Stock
urygen (jas & uonversron ot
LOX to GOX NM3 0 0 0 0
Power KWH 0 0 0 0

(iii) Trading 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Particulars Unit Quantity Value, (Rs) Quantity Value (Rs)

Opening Stock
gxygen cas & Lrqurd NM3 0 0 0 0
Other Gases 1253603'l 3045443
Purchases
Oxygen Gas & Liquid NM3 680398 5660426 481957 4142560
Other Gases 391 093 27508704
Sales
oxygen cas & Liquid NM3 680398 6082757 481957 4295696
Other Gases 10064257 21303217
closing stock
Orygen Gas & Llquid NM3 0 0 0 0
other Gases 4107247 1 2536031

**** The quantitative details are not given as the company deals in a large number of items of different
measurement units and therefore it is not practical to give quantitative details in respect thereof.

26.20 Trade receivable,trade payable,loans & advances as appearing in the Balance Sheet are subject to confirmation.
26.21 In the view of the management,assets other than non cunent assets & investments, have value on realisation at

least equal to the amount of which they are stated in books of account.

26.22 Figures for the previous year have been re-arranged and/ or re-grouped wherever considered necessary.

As per our rcpoft of even date aftached
For Chaturvedi and Company

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 302137E

S C Chaturvedl
Partnei
(llemberchip No. - 12705)

Place : Kolkata
Date : 30th May 2016

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Suresh Kr Sharma
Chairman
(DlN:00041150)

Himanshu Sharma
Managing Director
(DlN:00041181)

Sukanta Bhattiacharjee
Chief Finance Officer

Ritu Damani
Company Secretary
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